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THURSDAY, APRIL 12, 2012, 2:32 P.M

SPECI AL MASTER THOWPSON. Okay. Wiy don't we go
on the record then.

So this is a hearing in State of Montana vs.
State of Woning and State of North Dakota, U.S. Suprene
Court Original Nunber 137, and it is a hearing on
Mont ana' s expedited notion for extension of Case
Managenent deadl i ne.

And why don't we begin by having counsel identify
t hensel ves formally for the record.

So we'll begin with the State of Montana. So,
M. Draper, if you want to introduce everybody.

MR. DRAPER: Thank you. Your Honor, this is John
Draper. | have with ne Donna Onerod, ny assistant, and
al so separately on the line are Jeff Wechsler from our
office and Jennifer Anders fromthe Attorney Ceneral's
of fice in Mntana.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: kay. Thank you.

And then for the State of Wom ng.

MR. M CHAEL: Yes, Your Honor, this is Peter
M chael calling from Cheyenne, Wom ng. | have five other
attorneys fromour office here. They're all with the
Wat er Natural Resources Division, so | won't give you

their positions, but David WIllns is here, you know him
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Matt hi as Sayer, S-a-y-e-r; Jay Jerde, J-e-r-d-e; Chris
Brown; and Andrew Kuhl mann.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: kay. Thank you very
much.

And so then for the State of North Dakot a.

M5. VERLEGER  Jennifer Verleger. That's V, as

in "Victor," e-r-l-e-g-e-r fromthe Attorney Ceneral's

of fice.
SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: Okay. Thank you very
much.
And then for the various Amci, so United States.
MR DUBOS: This is James DuBois, Your Honor.
SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: Okay. And North
Cheyenne.

M5. WH TEI NG Jeanne Wi teing, Your Honor.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON:  And t hen Anadar ko.

MR WGMORE: M chael Wgnore of Bi ngham
McCut chen for Anadar ko.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: kay. Thank you.

Is there anyone |'mforgetting?

kay. Then if not -- so | have read through
Mont ana's expedited notion and all of the various
attachnents. And let ne just start wth one question for
M. Draper, which is there's sone suggestions in, for

exanple, the two declarations that you have of your expert
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W tnesses that the trial date of |ate August, early
Septenber was -- was -- or | guess actually August was
unexpect ed.

Could you just give ne a little bit of history as
to what you had been expecting and then what took you by
surprise here?

MR. DRAPER: Yes, Your Honor. This is John
Draper. | had frankly been hoping that Special Master
Kayatta in that case would set trial for next January.

But as it turned out, since he is a candidate for a seat
on the First Crcuit and his nom nation is pending before
the Senate -- he's had his hearing before the Judiciary
Commttee already -- he believes that if it's successful,
that he may be seated as early as Labor Day. And so he
sai d because of that he wanted to be sure he finished this
up before then.

And we had been generally aware that his
nom nati on was pending, but in an election year that's a
very variable itemand had not expected that it would form
the basis of an early trial date here. And so it did
take -- it did take ne by surprise, and | realized
I mredi ately that | was going to have a major conflict here
in terns of both our experts and our own attorney tine.

And | did express that to himwhen I got over the

initial shock, and said that given what he was sayi ng
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about the setting in that case, that I would need to
approach the parties and you in this case about
accommodating that with sone rel axati on of our schedule in
this case. And he declined to give nme any advice, but
said that if there arose unavoidable collision of the few
cases to get back with himpronptly.

So we did. W were -- we were neeting with the
Wom ng counsel the follow ng Monday after that Friday
call and nentioned this new devel opnent, and also in our
status report |ast week, and then described it nore fully
in the notion we recently filed.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: Okay. Thanks. And |
do appreciate your also raising this right away.

So let nme give you ny initial inpressions and
then get all of your thoughts on the notion and how to
deal wth it.

| certainly understand the problemof trying to
deal wth -- well, deal with discovery in the Mntana vs.
Wom ng case at the sane tinme that you're in trial in the
Kansas vs. Nebraska case. And so | want to try to
accomodate that conflict to the degree which | think is
appropri ate.

At the sanme tine, | amvery reticent to let this
case basically slide another four nonths. It m ght be

that 1"mhighly influenced by the fact that a Speci al
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Mast er who was al so a professor here at Stanford Law
School in the 20th century had a case which ended up
| asting for about 10 years.

And this case | know has only been around for
four years, but | -- you know, these cases, particularly
I f the cal endar begins flipping, can end up taking a | ot
| onger than they should. And obviously, this is all
relevant to the way in which the Yell owstone R ver System
I's being adm nistered, |I'mtold. To the degree we can
cone to a quicker conclusion, that's what | would like to
see. So, as | said, I'mvery reticent to see this slip
anot her entire four nonths.

I'"'mal so not convinced that it needs to slip
anot her four nonths. | realize that we're tal king here
not only about the one nonth that you will be in trial,
but that you'll also need to be focusing on preparation
for that trial.

O course, though, in any case, even if the trial

date had not been noved forward, you would have been in a

process of having to get two cases ready at the sane tine.

And al so |I'm hoping that, although |I know that,

M. Draper, that you're central to Womng's team that
there are others who can perhaps work on various nmatters
for Montana during this period of tine either in your

office or in the Montana Attorney General's office.
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So taking a | ook at the cal endar, what | would
like to be able to do is to try and figure out a schedul e
that, as | say, would accommpbdate the npbst exi guous
el ements of the conflict between the two origina
jurisdiction cases and yet at the sane tinme would get this

case ready for final notions at the very beginning of Muy.

And in trying to, well, see how that woul d be
possible, | |look basically at two potential options. One
option would be that we woul d keep the notion -- Woning's

notion for partial summary judgnent scheduled as it
currently is. And | realize that that would basically
requi re that Montana prepare a brief on July 13th. W
would also -- | would think if we did that -- probably
nove up the date for Womng's reply brief a day or two
and try to actually hear the notion |like on the 26 or 27th
of July. So, in other words, you know, we would get that
all done so that you would be able to then go to trial
weeks | ater.

And | recognize that that woul d not be probably
your preference, M. Draper, if you had it all to arrange
yourself. But if we did that, then we would at | east have
a sense at that point of the overall scope of the -- of
this first phase of the case and parties could proceed
forward on that.

And then what we would end up doi ng woul d be
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del aying the expert reports by sonething in the nature of
a nonth and a half to two nonths, which hopefully woul d be
after the trial in the Kansas case, but you would be able
to -- experts would be able to turn their attention to
that. And | can go into nore detail on it.

| think it requires sone squeezing here and there
that actually is already reflected in the -- in the
revi sed schedul e that Montana has suggested, but it woul d,
| think, be able to get us ready for the final notions
having to be filed at the very begi nning of May.

A second option would be to hold a -- would be to
have Womng file its renewed notion for partial sunmary
j udgnent at the beginning of Septenber after the date when
t he Kansas vs. Nebraska case is currently expected in |I'm
t hi nking sonmething in the nature of Septenber 7th.

If we, for exanple, said that Wonmng would file
its renewed notion there on Septenber 7th, that would nean
t hat Montana woul d have its response due on Cctober 5th;

It would then have Wonm ng's response due on Cctober 18t h.
We can have a hearing right away. |'mperfectly willing
to dive into those papers and have a hearing wthin a day
or two. And then everything else, including when the
expert reports would be due, would be the same as under
the first option.

The di fference would be that there would be a
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much shorter period of tine between when | rule on

Wom ng's renewed notion for partial sunmary judgnent and
when Montana woul d have to disclose its first expert
reports. Although I'mthinking that the expert reports
woul d be sonetine in sort of the m ddle of Decenber for
Mont ana. That would still give you about a, if | ruled
right away, sonmething in the nature of a nonth and a half
in which to finalize the expert reports in light of that
ruling, which is about the sane tine you' ve actually
proposed in the revised schedule that you' ve set out on
Page 1.

So those are two options that | | ooked at how --
you know, as | say, trying to accomobdate the tri al
schedul e that the Special Master in Nebraska vs. -- |I'm
sorry, Kansas vs. Nebraska has set out, how to accommodate
that trial, basically to delay everything by, as | say,
you know, about a nonth and a half to two nonths. And
that reflects the nonth of the trial and the fact that you
probably | ose sonme tinme because you're also having to
prepare ahead of tine.

I'"'msure, M. Draper, that neither option one nor
option two woul d be your preference. But as | say, what
I"'mtrying to dois to find a way of accommobdating you
wi t hout del ayi ng everything by four nonths. And this is

partly recognizing that inevitably I'msure there wll be
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sonme ot her delays in the process.

And | really began to get worried when | saw your
efforts to accommbdate Wom ng's concerns that it m ght
take thema little bit longer to actually develop their --
their expert reports after seeing yours and had extended
all the various deadlines out until Septenber.

So, as | say, | just realize there are going to
be other issues that will come up, and so I'mtrying to
keep us on track as nmuch as possible while acconmobdati ng
your need also at the sane tine.

So what | would love to do is get everyone's
t houghts on these two options as to nunber one, are either
options in your view feasible? And if not feasible, then
try to convince ne why. And then also, if | were to
choose one of these two options, whether you have a
preference between those two options.

Basically, the first option, you know, requires
people to stay on the current schedule for the renewed
notion for partial summary judgnent, but then gives people
plenty of time after that to actually work on the expert
reports and discovery in |ight of whatever nmy ruling is on
that renewed notion, while the second option puts the
notion off until after the trial, but then as a result of
that provides sort of less tinme between then and the

expert reports, and therefore, not as nmuch of an advant age

KRAMM & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page: 14



Transcription of Conference

STATE OF MONTANA vs. STATE OF WYOMING, et al.

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

to being able to use whatever ny ruling is to shape the
di scovery that has taken pl ace.

| also worry a little bit about option two al so
In that although I know that the Special Mster in Kansas
vs. Nebraska has decided to hear this in August, | can
I magine that flipping a little bit under the first option,
if it flips alittle bit, it doesn't matter. Under the
second option, if it flips alittle bit, we're back into
conflict again.

So that's -- those are ny initial thoughts. And,
M. Draper, because, as | said, |I'msure that you wll --
you're the one that this wll be nost problematic for, why
don't | start with your thoughts.

MR. DRAPER: Your Honor, this is John Draper.
Well, you are correct, this is going to either -- either
of those would be problematic fromour point of view And
| would ask in general for your consideration of
slightly -- at least slightly longer tinme franes than
you' re thinking of here.

I -- you know, it's hard to choose between these
on the spur of the nonent. What you said about the
advant age of doing the notion for partial summary judgnent
briefing and hearing ahead of the scheduled trial date
made sone sense. But | do fear that cutting it so close

for the expert reports as a nonth and a half, two nonths
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I's a problem

And we, | think, have a responsibility, each of
the states does, to be sure that we do everything we can
to provide a full record for you and the court, and this

makes it nore difficult for us to do so.

So | guess if | -- understandi ng your
inclinations, | would -- at |east subject to consulting
with ny client, which | can't do during this call, | would

think your first option is maybe the preferable one if you
could see your way clear to a little bit nore tine to
accomodate the realties of our situation for the filing
of expert reports.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: So let nme just ask you
on the expert reports. So | know that the -- both of the
two experts in their declarations suggest that they need
until February 15th, which is a full four-nonth del ay.

And | certainly understand they're central to both of your
two cases, but given that the trial is about a nonth and
that they woul d have been working on both cases at the
sane tinme, even if you had gone to trial in January, can
you try to explain to ne why they need an additional four
nont hs?

That just seens |ike a |ong delay as a result of
the one-nonth trial in August.

MR DRAPER: Well, Your Honor, the four-nonth

KRAMM & ASSOCIATES, INC.
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figure didn't conme fromne; it came fromthem And | am
probably a little bit handi capped in expl aining exactly
how that differs. But if -- if we're going to have to put
a trial before the conpletion of expert reports in this
case, put a trial of sonething approaching a nonth with
t he associated preparation and pre- and post-tri al
briefing that involves the expert, it's -- it seens rather
clear that they're going to have to do things that -- now
that we had no notice of until this announcenent by
Speci al Master Kayatta that we were going to have to do
before the expert reports would be due in this case.

In this case there's still a good deal of
dat a- gat heri ng and di scovery to be done that needs to
I nvol ve the experts in terns of several stages of
assessing data and evidence and determ ning what further
I S necessary and then going through the procedures
necessary to obtain that data and then the anal ysis, and
so on, that has to go on in between those stages in

preparing the final report.

Soit's a--it's a pretty intensive period in
terns of expert -- the need for expert attention in that
phase of the case. And it's sonething that will now not

be possible to devote the tinme that we had assuned woul d
be avail abl e.

SPECI AL MASTER THOWPSON: | assune that there's

KRAMM & ASSOCIATES, INC.
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not been any schedul e yet that --

(M. Wgnore rejoined the neeting.)

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON:  So | assune t hat
there -- since the trial hasn't actually taken place,
there is no schedule yet for post-trial briefings?

| assune that's sonething you'll probably do at
the end of the trial or is there a sense of when that is
likely to be and when?

MR. DRAPER:. There isn't any detail about the
pre- and post-trial schedul e yet, but the Special Master
i n that case has indicated that he woul d be di scussing
that with us and entering orders covering -- covering
those issues in detail here probably in the next -- we
have a -- we have a call scheduled with himon the -- |
think it's the 24th of -- yes, the 24th of April. And I
expect that at that tinme we'll be infornmed of what is
going to be required, and he will hear inquiries and
comments by the parties at that point, and then on the
basis of that set the schedul e.

SPECI AL MASTER THOWPSON: (kay. So that's
hel pful .

So, M. Mchael, before you actually get through
t hese options, let nme ask you whether Wom ng has a -- any
concern about extendi ng the deadline other than the way

that it mght inpact other deadlines that you face?
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Qobvi ously, fromthe standpoint of the judicial
system there's the inportance of noving this forward in
any case, but I"'malso curious, and it wasn't clear from
the one letter that was part of the energency notion,
whet her or not your concerns about the proposed revised
cal endar was really focused that -- on the fact that this
m ght end up squeezing you at the tine of the rel ease of
the expert reports or whether or not you al so thought from
t he standpoint of Womng that it was inportant to nove
this forward.

MR. M CHAEL: Your Honor, | have a nunber of
concerns. And |I've had a chance, after seeing Montana's
noti on which cane in a couple days ago, also of doing sone
| egal research, seeing what the lawis on these and
| ooki ng at our Case Managenent Plan. So |'ve got nmaybe
four or five |l can tick off for you.

SPECI AL MASTER THOWPSON:  kay.

MR MCHAEL: | won't belabor you with the | egal
system concerns that show up in all these cases on
extensions of scheduling orders under Rule 16. It's
wel | -known |law. There's a case called Johnson vs. Manmoth
Recreation. It's probably the best case, a Ninth Crcuit
case.

But | | ooked at the scheduling orders, and ny

first concernis this: W have on Pages 5 and 6, "Mbntana
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Page: 19



Transcription of Conference

STATE OF MONTANA vs. STATE OF WYOMING, et al.

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

shall disclose its experts no |ater than October 19,
2012." Then we have two provisions follow ng that; one
for Wom ng di scl osure and one for Mntana discl osures.
And this isn't about dates; this is about the standard.

If we want to get nore tine -- and | don't know
whet her we'll need it because we're working very hard to
try to prevent that possibility with our experts and
trying to anticipate what we'll see from Montana, but if
we need to get that, we have to prove good cause shown.
And one of the concerns | have is just a general concern
about this case is that we have standards for these kinds
of nmotions and that we apply the law. So that's nunber
one.

We expect to, if we want to get an extension
sonetine for that and hope we don't have to, to have to

neet the standard of good cause shown. And | don't think

Mont ana has done that wth respect to what they want here.

So I'mconcerned about that. That's over -- just a
general concern.

On pure scheduling concerns, | have a nunber of
themon timng. First of all, let's talk for a mnute
about the renewal of our notion for summary judgnent.
First of all, | don't see it as a significant -- all that
significant event froma briefing standpoint.

I think we have had our -- we had our |ong

KRAMM & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page: 20



Transcription of Conference

STATE OF MONTANA vs. STATE OF WYOMING, et al.

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

hearing in Denver |ast Septenber and you nmade ruling on a
| ot of the |legal issues, and it was, you know, well
briefed and heavily briefed. And I think all we're doing
today is giving Montana what they ask for, which is a
chance to do sone discovery to see if they can find

anot her year besides 2004 and ' 06.

And | think it's very inportant to us to try to
get those issues resolved early as we said | ast August at
t he schedul i ng conference when we tal ked about putting
that call issue on our docket early because of the kind of
efficiency that would add to the case when we get that
| ssue narrowed down.

And we have worked on that. W had -- in our
I nterrogatories that we sent to Montana, we included
guestions about that, and we haven't received anythi ng new
t hat Montana di scovered and Montana hasn't done any
di scovery on that issue. | think we need to get that and
bring that forward on the schedul e that we now have.

And | would add this: Because | don't think that
there is all that much nore to argue about, other than to
maybe tal k about what further facts nay be brought forward
on that issue, that | don't think it's going to be that
big of a problemfor Mntana to staff that argunent, if
necessary, even if it was sonebody else. | know that

Jenni fer Anders who |'ve been working with very closely on
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di scovery issues alnpbst on a daily basis attended those
argunents, and she knows what the issues are.

So | would say | just don't see any reason
what soever on that call issue, we don't nove that and keep
that up front, because it really helps elimnate this
uncertainty about do we have to | ook at sonme other year?
Do we have to go do research on what was happening in 1981
or 1997 other than 2004 and '6? So | really think that's
I nportant to keep that up front.

The other area -- | do have an area of concern
about a discovery stay, and that's sonething I don't think
you' ve real ly tal ked about much here, but it --

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: | was goi ng to address
that, but why don't you go ahead and raise it now.

MR. M CHAEL: kay, I'Il raise.

This sumrer we're | ooking at a snowpack in the
Bi g Horn Mountai ns of about 75 percent of average right
now. W had, as you know, nationw de and al so here a
horrendously warmearly spring, and we're going to have
probably an early runoff. W're going to have a water
year where actual inspections under Rule 34 m ght be very
valuable to help tell howthis -- this river is regul ated,
especially in Montana, a state that doesn't -- in those
two rivers does very little adm nistration we're finding

out. And so we think that it mght be inportant for us to
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actually see on the ground sone things. And we can't do
that in July and August, critical irrigation nonths, if
Montana -- if we have a stay of discovery and there's no
roomto use Rule 34.

So -- and | would add this: As | said a mnute
ago, we've been working with Jennifer Anders in Mntana
very closely on docunent production. W get up there. W
took four |awers, two experts up there on a trip to
Mont ana. They sent people down here to | ook at stuff.
We've been doing that. And | really believe that even if
M. Draper and M. Wchsler feel they personally have to
be attending depositions to take depositions, | still
think we nove the case forward if it turns out Womng --
we front-load the Wom ng depositions, and surely sonebody
can defend those depositions. | don't see that as a
difficulty.

| don't -- depositions | take, and | think I can
speak for the other | awers here, are depositions that are
very genteel and done the right way and with the right
ki nd of working between the attorneys. So | just don't
see that as a problem So | would -- | very nuch oppose
any stay of discovery. | think it's unnecessary. And |
think we can keep this thing noving for that reason --

t hose reasons.

And as far as the experts go, as | said before, |
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don't think Montana -- | think you' ve asked sone

questions -- have actually cone forward with a notion here
that gives any of the kind of information that woul d be
necessary to share the test of due diligence, which is
what have they done in this case in the last five years to
have these experts get prepared.

But one nonth -- I'mnot going to stand here and
tell you that a one-nonth delay is all that big of a deal.
As | said, we're working very hard to get our experts
ready. We hope we don't have to ask for any kind of a
good cause extension. And -- but -- and we're trying to
predi ct what their experts will be designating so we can
try to do that.

But | think that kind of covers the issues that |
wanted to talk about in ternms of the schedule. So your
option nunber one seens to be by far the fairest and the
best .

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: kay. Thanks.

So let me -- | want to separate out two things
for a monent. The first is the schedule as a whole and
second of all the question of a discovery stay.

First of all, interns of the schedule as a
whol e, do any of the Am cus want to say anything with
regard to that? Any comments? Any thoughts?

kay. And then, M. Draper, | knowit's alittle

KRAMM & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page: 24



Transcription of Conference

STATE OF MONTANA vs. STATE OF WYOMING, et al.

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

bit different because -- difficult for you because you're
i n one roomand the other attorneys for Mntana are in
different locations. So let ne also ask whether or not
any of your co-counsel in this case have anything that
they want to add?

Ckay. So then, M. Draper, again just staying on
the schedul e, and we can talk, as | say, about the
di scovery stay in a nonment, but any response that you want
to make to -- well, to M. Mchael's comments?

MR. DRAPER: Yes, Your Honor. W believe that we

have shown good cause by our notion, the affidavits, and

the discussion today. | think M. Mchaels -- M chael
said that there was -- we had not done any discovery.
W' ve been -- we've nade two separate trips to

Wom ng with counsel and experts for significant parts of
weeks in each case to push discovery along, so we have not
been sitting back on that as he seened to suggest.

In terns of adding to the efficiency of the case,
| expressed ny initial preference for the first option.
But in terns of adding to the efficiency of the case, |
think you've nmade it clear that the decision on the notion
for partial summary judgnent is going to a renedy and
whet her danmages can be awarded in certain years, not as to
standards for Conpact Conpliance. So | don't think that

point is particularly relevant. But the points that you
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have raised | think are. And we do all want to
participate in an expeditious manner to take care of our
part in the Court's responsibility to hear and deci de

t hese cases based on a full record.

As far as the statenments regardi ng how
unnecessary it is to have any particul ar person invol ved
I n discovery, it seens to ne that whenever possible the
Court should allow the parties to have their nornal
counsel present and not schedule things in a way that
makes it inpossible for that to happen.

So those are ny comments. And as | said before,
the first option seens to be sonewhat preferable from our
point of view, but | do -- | would urge that we be all owed
nore time in the big schene of things, another nonth or
two is not -- is not going to loomvery large. Wuat wll
be inportant is whether the case gets properly prepared
and tried and properly deci ded.

SPECI AL MASTER THOWPSON. (kay. And then on the
di scovery stay -- so the proposal right now is that
di scovery be stayed fromJuly 15th to Septenber 15th. As
| understand what you're requesting, it is that no
deposi tions woul d take place during that period of tine,
and in addition to that, that no di scovery answers due
during that period of tinme; is that correct?

MR. DRAPER: Yes, Your Honor. That discovery be
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tenporarily suspended so that during that tinme the State
of Montana and, in particular, the experts that we have
and counsel are not required to play a major role with
respect to discovery; in other words, to have a schedul e
that would require substantial involvenent of counsel
during that period because sone deadline is imedi ately
after it or at the end of it.

It was -- it was nmy concern really for the
I mredi ate pretrial responsibilities that Special Master
Kayatta has indicated in forceble ternms would be occurring
in the tine leading up to the trial and that there will be
post-trial briefing. So during that particular tine it
seens particularly inappropriate to be requiring us to
di scharge that responsibility if it's not absolutely
necessary.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: M. M chael, just going
back to you for a nonent, and I know that this will be a
sonewhat difficult question to ask, but do you have any
sense of the type of discovery that you woul d expect to
conduct during that period of tinme if you coul d?

MR. M CHAEL: Onh, absolutely, Your Honor. W're
taki ng a deposition next week. W're taking -- |I'mtaking
four the week after in Helena and Billings. Those are the
Conpact comm ssioners and the higher officials in Mntana

so | can talk to them about the call i1ssue, and then we're
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going to talk about a I ot of other issues involving
adm ni stration, how dans are reqgul ated, that sort of
t hi ng.

So we woul d probably take depositions of possibly
some of the ranchers, the major -- or actually the major
irrigation district which is the T & Y Irrigation
District. W would take the deposition of the fellow that
manages Tongue River Reservoir. W would probably take
t he deposition of the several people that were asked to be
adm ni strators by Montana court to adm nister the rivers
I n 2004 and 2006, and we woul d be gathering just sinple
facts: How do they do things? How do they operate? Wat
do they recall about those years, the things that they
di d?

That's the kind of things that Montana's experts,
of course, can sinply read the transcripts |later on.

We're not tal king about taking the depositions of a bunch
of -- you know, this isn't highly technical, really. It's
just tell us how you operate, what you do, that sort of
thing. | think it's sonmething that Montana could readily
defend without any difficulty and woul dn't be one that
their experts would have to attend necessarily.

So, yes, we'd be thinking about doi ng those
depositions in the sumrer when it nakes sense. And if a

conbi nation of a deposition and also a field inspection of
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a diversion point, we would want to do that, we would go
do that. And I'm sure Montana can then, you know -- we
can't trespass, so Montana woul d have to escort us on
t hat .

That's what | have in mind. And that's why |
said | felt that could continue without any difficulty.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: (Okay. So let ne just

say on this -- you know, again, | understand Montana's
concerns here. | think at a mninmum and this really is a
m ni mum that, you know, any -- you know, to the degree

t hat di scovery was stayed for a period of tinme that there
be an exception for any type of discovery that needs to be
taken during that period of tine. So the type of field
I nspection you're tal king about, M. M chael, would
clearly fall into that category.

And, you know, at this point for ne the question
Is whether | stay discovery for alimted period of tine
subject to, let's say, to any exceptions for things that
have to take place during that -- during that w ndow or
permt discovery to -- well, to take place or another
possibility would be to permt discovery subject to --
well, Montana if it believed that it cannot adequately
defend, for exanple, a deposition because of the
| nportance of having an expert there, raising the question

initially wwth Womng, and if the two of you couldn't
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agree, then asking ne for basically a stay on that
specific discovery so that we can do this on a case by
case basis.

So M. Draper and M. M chael, thoughts on those
options. | know which option each of you prefers, but --

MR. DRAPER: Your Honor, this is John Draper. |
t hi nk that your suggestion there sounds |ike a workable
one. | would say that the types of matters that
M. Mchael has referred to don't occur exclusively during
this July 15th to Septenber 15th period. Irrigationis
going on before then. And | think we should be able to
accommodat e their requests under the conditions that they
would like to do it and not -- and not need to do it
within this period that we' ve requested.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: | actually put several
options out there. So when you said that what | set out
sounded like it would be workable, I'mnot quite sure
whi ch one you were thinking of.

MR. DRAPER: | was thinking, Your Honor, of the
staying of discovery for alimted period. And there |
was thinking of the period that we had requested,

July 15th to Septenber 15th, with the caveat or exception
t hat di scovery can go forward during that period
nevertheless if it's the only tinme such discovery can be

conduct ed.

KRAMM & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page: 30



Transcription of Conference

STATE OF MONTANA vs. STATE OF WYOMING, et al.

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON:  And M. M chael .

MR MCHAEL: Well, there's one other point |
wanted to raise, and | kind of got off focusing on
depositions. And | really believe that -- | disagree with
M. Draper, what he said a nonent ago.

| mean, this -- in a drought year, 2006, the
Tongue River didn't go into adm nistrati on of Mntana
till -- at least they didn't nmake a call on Womng til
July 28th of 2006. So to say that we can find out what we
need to find out earlier, |'mnot sure.

But the other issue is records and docunents,
and, you know, there's been a big effort. And | m sspoke
before, and | apologize for that if | said Montana hasn't
done discovery. | just said what they've done is
basically the docunent, you know, sharing that we' ve been
doi ng between each other. But | suspect there's going to
be sone docunent discovery, and there m ght be a
deposition or two of sone docunent custodians, | forget to
mention, that would be able to tell us what Mntana
docunents were and how you woul d mani pul ate their data,
that sort of thing.

And so far anything we've done with docunents, at
| east when we've been up to Montana, we worked with
Jenni fer Anders, and they've been very gracious, and |

hope we' ve been as equally graci ous down here, and | just
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don't see why that wouldn't continue. | think it's nostly
going to be a little here, alittle there, a specific
docunent here or a specific thing that sonebody

di scovered, and I just don't see the need why that
couldn't be done and continue during that interim |It's
really the way we've been working already with Montana on
docunents. And we've been doing it very much this week on
shari ng docunents.

So | forgot to nention that. | did want to al so
put that on the table, Your Honor.

As far as the -- again, | guess if there was a
deposition that we noticed and Mntana had said, "Look,
this is one that we really think we have to have our
experts there," and can convince you of that, then so be
it, then we'd be barred fromtaking the deposition. |
t hi nk we ought to have a chance to go forward and have it
be case by case if there's a problem would be ny
preference, in terns of conpromsing a little here.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: Ri ght.

And so ny general approach on these issues, from
the period that | was a litigator, is that, you know, to
beli eve that counsel can generally work these things out,
particularly as in this case where it appears to ne
there's a very good working relationship between the

counsel on both sides.
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And so that's why |'m wonderi ng whet her or not
one possi ble approach is to basically have a rule that
during the -- during the period of the trial, as well as,
you know, | think it's also fair to also give M. Draper
and his -- and his fellow attorneys an opportunity to
prepare for that trial, but during that period of tine
that Wom ng woul d avoid any discovery that if it believes
It doesn't need to hold during that period of tinme or that
woul d probably need the presence of either M. Draper,

M. Wechsler, or their experts who are working on the

ot her case, so basically asking Wom ng to accomrpbdat e
M. Draper and M. Wchsler and their experts during that
period. And also reflecting that M. Draper and

M. Wechsler would be free to say if a particul ar request
was troubl esone.

And if you all cannot work it out on your own,
then I would be nore than happy on a case by case basis to
say that, no, | think that really you need to |et
M. Draper and M. Wechsler handle their other case and we
put that off until later.

But | guess ny question is: |s there any reason
why the two of you believe you can't work this out
toget her versus just putting an absolute stay on
di scovery?

MR DRAPER: Well, Your Honor, this is John
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Draper. | think it is true that we have established a
very good working rel ationship anong counsel. Wat --
what any order you put into place would do is sinply set

t he general assunptions about -- about how things should
proceed during a certain period. And certainly if there's
sonet hing during that period that woul d ot herw se be
appropri ate and can be accommobdated, we'd certainly be
open to that. But | think it would be helpful if you were
able to set the stage and at | east indicate that discovery
that doesn't need to take place during that July 15th to

Septenber 15th period be avoided if at all possible and

t hat counsel -- counsel be encouraged to work out any
I ssues fromeither side. | think that kind of approach is
likely to be workable given our last -- our historical

good wor ki ng rel ati onshi p.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: M. M chael.

MR MCHAEL: Well, | would say this: If we're
going to knock out a couple nonths of nobst of discovery or
deposi tion discovery that we just have to be very aware;
we have got a discovery -- last day for depositions is
currently schedul ed for January 25th. And the w tness
lists are very long fromthe initial disclosures. So
we' re tal king about the potential here of having nmultiple
depositions going on at the sane tines later in the fall

So I would just keep that in mnd. | think we've got the
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manpower here to handle it and may have to do that. So |
t hi nk everybody needs to be aware of that.

SPECI AL MASTER THOWMPSON:. Okay. So let ne tel
you where | think | amat the nmonent, which is that -- ny
inclination is to go forward with the schedul e for
Wom ng's renewed notion for partial summary judgnent,
al though I do not have any calendar in front of ne right
now.

What | woul d propose, and | realize that this is
aski ng sonet hing of you, M. Mchael, but what | would
propose is probably I wll nove the deadline for Womng's
response up a couple of days. You know, as you point out,
| would particularly expect when you get to the response
stage that it's not going to be particularly tine
consum ng. To the degree that there is any aspect of this
notion which is tinme consuming wll probably be pulling
the facts together, and trying to, therefore, hold the --
a hearing on that renewed notion on Friday, July 27th or
potentially Thursday July 26th. That way we can conplete
all of that and get that out of the way before the trial
commences i n Kansas vs. Nebraska.

As | said, | do expect to -- well, to delay when
expert reports are due, but not by four nonths. And so ny
best expectation is probably something in the two nonth

vicinity because at | east based on the papers in front of
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me, it's hard for ne to see good cause for nore than about
a two-nonth extension in those deadlines, but | do think
that there is cause shown to delay those dates to sone
degree to reflect the fact that the experts that

M. Draper expects to use on behalf of Mntana are al so

I nvol ved in the Kansas vs. Nebraska case.

And as | said, ny goal would be to extend all of
the various deadlines that cone after the renewed notion
for partial summary judgnent. So that would include the
di scl osure of the expert report and the |ast day for
propoundi ng witten discovery and the |ast date for
deposition and the final day for notions. All of those
woul d al so be noved back to reflect that delay wth a goal
of having the final day for notions be at the beginning of
May rather than the June 25th date. So ny hope woul d be
Is that ultimtely we would maybe | ose a nonth and a hal f
here in noving the trial forward.

On the discovery stay, ny inclination is, as |
mentioned, to issue an order requiring the parties to
confer and to decide what is -- what is appropriate.

And in connection with that, | think it is
| nportant that we reflect the fact that M. Draper and
M. Wechsler will be inthe trial. So that suggests that
anyt hi ng that does not need to take place during the --

during the window of the trial and, say, two weeks before
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that doesn't need to take place during that period of tine
and is not going to nake discovery nore difficult for

Wom ng or really both parties by requiring doubling up
afterwards, to the degree that things can be del ayed, then
| would ask that Wom ng grant that courtesy to Mntana.

But | would al so expect that as part of that
conferral, that nunber one, if there are specific
di scovery matters that Wom ng feels is necessary during
that period, that we wll nove forward on those.

SSmlarly, if there is sonmething that is in the -- that is
already in the works; in other words, if there's, for
exanple, a witten discovery matter where maybe it's to
suppl enent interrogatories and the like and it is
relatively mnor, you know, nmy hope is that things just
don't shut down as of two weeks before the trial, but that
those matters can continue forward.

And furthernore, M. Mchael, if there are
particul ar depositions that you would like to -- well, be
able to schedule for that period of tine and that you do
not believe that M. Draper and M. Wechsler may be there
because Ms. Anders, for exanple, could handle the defense
of the deposition, then | would ask that the parties sit
down and basically go through those w tnesses and see
whet her or not an agreenent can be nmade that sone

depositions can go forward wwth Ms. Anders as defending
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them And that if there is any disagreenent there, that
It can be brought back to ne on an energency basis. |'m
wlling to sit down at any point to tal k about these, and
we can actually resolve those.

My expectation is that we probably won't need
t hat because | think you are all very considerate to each
other and that you'll be able to work it out, but |I'mnore
t han happy to resolve things on a case by case basis.

So that's nmy current thinking. And there are a
couple of details there, including the exact anmount of
time that | would delay the expert reports that |I'm not
going to decide during this tel ephone call because | want
to sit down with the calendar and actually | ook at the
cal endar and see how this can be best addressed.

And also | will enbody in any order |anguage to

the effect that | just said with respect to the discovery
stay. So | realize I'll need to put that together. And
tonorrow is actually -- we have a retreat of the Wods
Institute that both I and Susan Carter will be at, so |

probably won't have an opportunity to circul ate anything
until Monday.

And, M. Draper, | know |l did not give you a
chance to consult with your fell ow counsel about ny two
options. And so you're certainly free tonorrow to submt

a letter if you want to weigh in on option two versus
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option one because, as | said, unless |I'm convinced
ot herw se, | am planning on noving forward with option
one.

And furthernore, if there's any other information
that you want to give me with respect to the I ength of
period of tinme necessary for a delay in the disclosure of
the expert reports other than what has -- you' ve already
submtted, you're also free to do that in a letter
t onorr ow.

And, M. Mchael, I'lIl give you the sane
consideration if there's anything nore that occurs to you
after this phone conference, you' re nore than wel cone
to -- well, submt that in a letter tonorrow because, as |
said, I won't finalize this until probably -- I'lIl work on
this on Sunday.

So et nme ask, then, both M. M chael and
M. Draper your thoughts on what | just said. | realize
that in neither case it is exactly what you want.

MR. DRAPER: Your Honor, this is John Draper. |
don't have anything further to say. | appreciate your
consi deration of our predicanent. [|'msorry that it has
arisen, but | appreciate the consideration of Wom ng and
the other parties as well as yourself in trying to address
that in a fair way.

MR. M CHAEL: Your Honor, this is Peter M chael.
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| don't have anything to add. Thank you.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: kay. Do any of the
ot her parties have anything they want to add or, again,
realize that other counsel from Montana are on the line
and can't pass notes to M. Draper, so if you do have
anything you want to add, feel free to add anything, too?

Ckay. Then I think if there's no other
conversation -- anything else that we need to raise during
this tel ephone conference?

MR. DRAPER: Not hing from Montana, Your Honor.

MR. M CHAEL: No, Your Honor.

SPECI AL MASTER THOWPSON: Ckay. Geat. So |
think this has been a really very productive phone
conference. And again, | appreciate the way in which the
parties are trying to work together to bring this to a
concl usi on.

And if you do have anything nore that you would
like to submt on these matters, any other thoughts that
cone to you, feel free to submt a letter tonorrow

And let nme just ask, if you are going to do that,
I f you could send it not only to Susan Carter as you
normal Iy would, but if you could also copy ne by e-nmuail.
And nmy e-mail is buzzt @tanford.edu. And | say that only
because she is going to be in the retreat, also, and she

probably won't have an opportunity to check and then
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forward it to ne, and that way I know | will have anyt hing
that you subm tted.

Ckay. So, again, thank you very much. Hope you
have productive renai nders of the day, what is left of it.
And as | said, | will submt an order revising the Case
Managenent Pl an dates along the lines that | just
di scussed and taking into consideration anything nore that
you add tonorrow. | will do that on Monday.

MR. DRAPER: Thank you very nuch, Your Honor.

SPECI AL MASTER THOMPSON: Thank you, M. Draper,
M. Mchael. Thank you everyone on the I|ine.

MR. M CHAEL: Thank you, Your Honor.

(End of proceedings at 3:38 p.m)
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STATE OF CALI FORNI A )

COUNTY OF SAN DI EGO )

|, ANTONI A SUEOKA, Certified Shorthand Reporter
No. 9007, State of California, do hereby certify:

That sai d proceedi ngs were taken at the tine and
pl ace therein named and were reported by nme in shorthand
and transcri bed by neans of conputer-aided transcription,
and that the foregoing pages are a full, conplete, and
true record of said proceedi ngs.

And | further certify that | ama disinterested
person and amin no way interested in the outcone of said
action, or connected with or related to any of the parties
In said action, or to their respective counsel.

The di smantling, unsealing, or unbinding of the
original transcript will render the reporter's certificate
nul | and voi d.

I N WTNESS WHERECF, | have hereunto set ny hand

this 23rd day of April, 2012.

Ant oni a Sueoka, RPR, CSR NO. 9007
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             1                   TELEPHONIC APPEARANCES:



             2  



             3  SPECIAL MASTER BARTON H. THOMPSON, JR.



             4  STANFORD UNIVERSITY 



             5  JERRY YANG AND AKIKO YAMAZAKI
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             1             THURSDAY, APRIL 12, 2012, 2:32 P.M.



             2                            - - -



             3           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  Why don't we go 



             4  on the record then.  



             5           So this is a hearing in State of Montana vs. 



             6  State of Wyoming and State of North Dakota, U.S. Supreme 



             7  Court Original Number 137, and it is a hearing on 



             8  Montana's expedited motion for extension of Case 



             9  Management deadline.  



            10           And why don't we begin by having counsel identify 



            11  themselves formally for the record.  



            12           So we'll begin with the State of Montana.  So, 



            13  Mr. Draper, if you want to introduce everybody.  



            14           MR. DRAPER:  Thank you.  Your Honor, this is John 



            15  Draper.  I have with me Donna Omerod, my assistant, and 



            16  also separately on the line are Jeff Wechsler from our 



            17  office and Jennifer Anders from the Attorney General's 



            18  office in Montana.  



            19           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  



            20           And then for the State of Wyoming.  



            21           MR. MICHAEL:  Yes, Your Honor, this is Peter 



            22  Michael calling from Cheyenne, Wyoming.  I have five other 



            23  attorneys from our office here.  They're all with the 



            24  Water Natural Resources Division, so I won't give you 



            25  their positions, but David Willms is here, you know him; 
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             1  Matthias Sayer, S-a-y-e-r; Jay Jerde, J-e-r-d-e; Chris 



             2  Brown; and Andrew Kuhlmann.  



             3           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  Thank you very 



             4  much.  



             5           And so then for the State of North Dakota.  



             6           MS. VERLEGER:  Jennifer Verleger.  That's V, as 



             7  in "Victor," e-r-l-e-g-e-r from the Attorney General's 



             8  office.  



             9           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  Thank you very 



            10  much.  



            11           And then for the various Amici, so United States.  



            12           MR. DUBOIS:  This is James DuBois, Your Honor.  



            13           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  And North 



            14  Cheyenne.  



            15           MS. WHITEING:  Jeanne Whiteing, Your Honor.  



            16           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  And then Anadarko.  



            17           MR. WIGMORE:  Michael Wigmore of Bingham, 



            18  McCutchen for Anadarko.  



            19           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  



            20           Is there anyone I'm forgetting?  



            21           Okay.  Then if not -- so I have read through 



            22  Montana's expedited motion and all of the various 



            23  attachments.  And let me just start with one question for 



            24  Mr. Draper, which is there's some suggestions in, for 



            25  example, the two declarations that you have of your expert 
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             1  witnesses that the trial date of late August, early 



             2  September was -- was -- or I guess actually August was 



             3  unexpected.  



             4           Could you just give me a little bit of history as 



             5  to what you had been expecting and then what took you by 



             6  surprise here?  



             7           MR. DRAPER:  Yes, Your Honor.  This is John 



             8  Draper.  I had frankly been hoping that Special Master 



             9  Kayatta in that case would set trial for next January.  



            10  But as it turned out, since he is a candidate for a seat 



            11  on the First Circuit and his nomination is pending before 



            12  the Senate -- he's had his hearing before the Judiciary 



            13  Committee already -- he believes that if it's successful, 



            14  that he may be seated as early as Labor Day.  And so he 



            15  said because of that he wanted to be sure he finished this 



            16  up before then.  



            17           And we had been generally aware that his 



            18  nomination was pending, but in an election year that's a 



            19  very variable item and had not expected that it would form 



            20  the basis of an early trial date here.  And so it did 



            21  take -- it did take me by surprise, and I realized 



            22  immediately that I was going to have a major conflict here 



            23  in terms of both our experts and our own attorney time.  



            24           And I did express that to him when I got over the 



            25  initial shock, and said that given what he was saying 
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             1  about the setting in that case, that I would need to 



             2  approach the parties and you in this case about 



             3  accommodating that with some relaxation of our schedule in 



             4  this case.  And he declined to give me any advice, but 



             5  said that if there arose unavoidable collision of the few 



             6  cases to get back with him promptly.  



             7           So we did.  We were -- we were meeting with the 



             8  Wyoming counsel the following Monday after that Friday 



             9  call and mentioned this new development, and also in our 



            10  status report last week, and then described it more fully 



            11  in the motion we recently filed.  



            12           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  Thanks.  And I 



            13  do appreciate your also raising this right away.  



            14           So let me give you my initial impressions and 



            15  then get all of your thoughts on the motion and how to 



            16  deal with it.  



            17           I certainly understand the problem of trying to 



            18  deal with -- well, deal with discovery in the Montana vs. 



            19  Wyoming case at the same time that you're in trial in the 



            20  Kansas vs. Nebraska case.  And so I want to try to 



            21  accommodate that conflict to the degree which I think is 



            22  appropriate.  



            23           At the same time, I am very reticent to let this 



            24  case basically slide another four months.  It might be 



            25  that I'm highly influenced by the fact that a Special 
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             1  Master who was also a professor here at Stanford Law 



             2  School in the 20th century had a case which ended up 



             3  lasting for about 10 years.  



             4           And this case I know has only been around for 



             5  four years, but I -- you know, these cases, particularly 



             6  if the calendar begins flipping, can end up taking a lot 



             7  longer than they should.  And obviously, this is all 



             8  relevant to the way in which the Yellowstone River System 



             9  is being administered, I'm told.  To the degree we can 



            10  come to a quicker conclusion, that's what I would like to 



            11  see.  So, as I said, I'm very reticent to see this slip 



            12  another entire four months.  



            13           I'm also not convinced that it needs to slip 



            14  another four months.  I realize that we're talking here 



            15  not only about the one month that you will be in trial, 



            16  but that you'll also need to be focusing on preparation 



            17  for that trial.  



            18           Of course, though, in any case, even if the trial 



            19  date had not been moved forward, you would have been in a 



            20  process of having to get two cases ready at the same time.  



            21  And also I'm hoping that, although I know that, 



            22  Mr. Draper, that you're central to Wyoming's team, that 



            23  there are others who can perhaps work on various matters 



            24  for Montana during this period of time either in your 



            25  office or in the Montana Attorney General's office.  
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             1           So taking a look at the calendar, what I would 



             2  like to be able to do is to try and figure out a schedule 



             3  that, as I say, would accommodate the most exiguous 



             4  elements of the conflict between the two original 



             5  jurisdiction cases and yet at the same time would get this 



             6  case ready for final motions at the very beginning of May.  



             7           And in trying to, well, see how that would be 



             8  possible, I look basically at two potential options.  One 



             9  option would be that we would keep the motion -- Wyoming's 



            10  motion for partial summary judgment scheduled as it 



            11  currently is.  And I realize that that would basically 



            12  require that Montana prepare a brief on July 13th.  We 



            13  would also -- I would think if we did that -- probably 



            14  move up the date for Wyoming's reply brief a day or two 



            15  and try to actually hear the motion like on the 26 or 27th 



            16  of July.  So, in other words, you know, we would get that 



            17  all done so that you would be able to then go to trial 



            18  weeks later.  



            19           And I recognize that that would not be probably 



            20  your preference, Mr. Draper, if you had it all to arrange 



            21  yourself.  But if we did that, then we would at least have 



            22  a sense at that point of the overall scope of the -- of 



            23  this first phase of the case and parties could proceed 



            24  forward on that.  



            25           And then what we would end up doing would be 











                                                                       11

�







                                                                         









             1  delaying the expert reports by something in the nature of 



             2  a month and a half to two months, which hopefully would be 



             3  after the trial in the Kansas case, but you would be able 



             4  to -- experts would be able to turn their attention to 



             5  that.  And I can go into more detail on it.  



             6           I think it requires some squeezing here and there 



             7  that actually is already reflected in the -- in the 



             8  revised schedule that Montana has suggested, but it would, 



             9  I think, be able to get us ready for the final motions 



            10  having to be filed at the very beginning of May.  



            11           A second option would be to hold a -- would be to 



            12  have Wyoming file its renewed motion for partial summary 



            13  judgment at the beginning of September after the date when 



            14  the Kansas vs. Nebraska case is currently expected in I'm 



            15  thinking something in the nature of September 7th.  



            16           If we, for example, said that Wyoming would file 



            17  its renewed motion there on September 7th, that would mean 



            18  that Montana would have its response due on October 5th; 



            19  it would then have Wyoming's response due on October 18th.  



            20  We can have a hearing right away.  I'm perfectly willing 



            21  to dive into those papers and have a hearing within a day 



            22  or two.  And then everything else, including when the 



            23  expert reports would be due, would be the same as under 



            24  the first option.  



            25           The difference would be that there would be a 
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             1  much shorter period of time between when I rule on 



             2  Wyoming's renewed motion for partial summary judgment and 



             3  when Montana would have to disclose its first expert 



             4  reports.  Although I'm thinking that the expert reports 



             5  would be sometime in sort of the middle of December for 



             6  Montana.  That would still give you about a, if I ruled 



             7  right away, something in the nature of a month and a half 



             8  in which to finalize the expert reports in light of that 



             9  ruling, which is about the same time you've actually 



            10  proposed in the revised schedule that you've set out on 



            11  Page 1.  



            12           So those are two options that I looked at how -- 



            13  you know, as I say, trying to accommodate the trial 



            14  schedule that the Special Master in Nebraska vs. -- I'm 



            15  sorry, Kansas vs. Nebraska has set out, how to accommodate 



            16  that trial, basically to delay everything by, as I say, 



            17  you know, about a month and a half to two months.  And 



            18  that reflects the month of the trial and the fact that you 



            19  probably lose some time because you're also having to 



            20  prepare ahead of time.  



            21           I'm sure, Mr. Draper, that neither option one nor 



            22  option two would be your preference.  But as I say, what 



            23  I'm trying to do is to find a way of accommodating you 



            24  without delaying everything by four months.  And this is 



            25  partly recognizing that inevitably I'm sure there will be 
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             1  some other delays in the process.  



             2           And I really began to get worried when I saw your 



             3  efforts to accommodate Wyoming's concerns that it might 



             4  take them a little bit longer to actually develop their -- 



             5  their expert reports after seeing yours and had extended 



             6  all the various deadlines out until September.  



             7           So, as I say, I just realize there are going to 



             8  be other issues that will come up, and so I'm trying to 



             9  keep us on track as much as possible while accommodating 



            10  your need also at the same time.  



            11           So what I would love to do is get everyone's 



            12  thoughts on these two options as to number one, are either 



            13  options in your view feasible?  And if not feasible, then 



            14  try to convince me why.  And then also, if I were to 



            15  choose one of these two options, whether you have a 



            16  preference between those two options.  



            17           Basically, the first option, you know, requires 



            18  people to stay on the current schedule for the renewed 



            19  motion for partial summary judgment, but then gives people 



            20  plenty of time after that to actually work on the expert 



            21  reports and discovery in light of whatever my ruling is on 



            22  that renewed motion, while the second option puts the 



            23  motion off until after the trial, but then as a result of 



            24  that provides sort of less time between then and the 



            25  expert reports, and therefore, not as much of an advantage 
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             1  to being able to use whatever my ruling is to shape the 



             2  discovery that has taken place.  



             3           I also worry a little bit about option two also 



             4  in that although I know that the Special Master in Kansas 



             5  vs. Nebraska has decided to hear this in August, I can 



             6  imagine that flipping a little bit under the first option, 



             7  if it flips a little bit, it doesn't matter.  Under the 



             8  second option, if it flips a little bit, we're back into 



             9  conflict again.  



            10           So that's -- those are my initial thoughts.  And, 



            11  Mr. Draper, because, as I said, I'm sure that you will -- 



            12  you're the one that this will be most problematic for, why 



            13  don't I start with your thoughts.  



            14           MR. DRAPER:  Your Honor, this is John Draper.  



            15  Well, you are correct, this is going to either -- either 



            16  of those would be problematic from our point of view.  And 



            17  I would ask in general for your consideration of 



            18  slightly -- at least slightly longer time frames than 



            19  you're thinking of here.  



            20           I -- you know, it's hard to choose between these 



            21  on the spur of the moment.  What you said about the 



            22  advantage of doing the motion for partial summary judgment 



            23  briefing and hearing ahead of the scheduled trial date 



            24  made some sense.  But I do fear that cutting it so close 



            25  for the expert reports as a month and a half, two months 
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             1  is a problem.  



             2           And we, I think, have a responsibility, each of 



             3  the states does, to be sure that we do everything we can 



             4  to provide a full record for you and the court, and this 



             5  makes it more difficult for us to do so.  



             6           So I guess if I -- understanding your 



             7  inclinations, I would -- at least subject to consulting 



             8  with my client, which I can't do during this call, I would 



             9  think your first option is maybe the preferable one if you 



            10  could see your way clear to a little bit more time to 



            11  accommodate the realties of our situation for the filing 



            12  of expert reports.  



            13           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  So let me just ask you 



            14  on the expert reports.  So I know that the -- both of the 



            15  two experts in their declarations suggest that they need 



            16  until February 15th, which is a full four-month delay.  



            17  And I certainly understand they're central to both of your 



            18  two cases, but given that the trial is about a month and 



            19  that they would have been working on both cases at the 



            20  same time, even if you had gone to trial in January, can 



            21  you try to explain to me why they need an additional four 



            22  months?  



            23           That just seems like a long delay as a result of 



            24  the one-month trial in August.  



            25           MR. DRAPER:  Well, Your Honor, the four-month 
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             1  figure didn't come from me; it came from them.  And I am 



             2  probably a little bit handicapped in explaining exactly 



             3  how that differs.  But if -- if we're going to have to put 



             4  a trial before the completion of expert reports in this 



             5  case, put a trial of something approaching a month with 



             6  the associated preparation and pre- and post-trial 



             7  briefing that involves the expert, it's -- it seems rather 



             8  clear that they're going to have to do things that -- now 



             9  that we had no notice of until this announcement by 



            10  Special Master Kayatta that we were going to have to do 



            11  before the expert reports would be due in this case.  



            12           In this case there's still a good deal of 



            13  data-gathering and discovery to be done that needs to 



            14  involve the experts in terms of several stages of 



            15  assessing data and evidence and determining what further 



            16  is necessary and then going through the procedures 



            17  necessary to obtain that data and then the analysis, and 



            18  so on, that has to go on in between those stages in 



            19  preparing the final report.  



            20           So it's a -- it's a pretty intensive period in 



            21  terms of expert -- the need for expert attention in that 



            22  phase of the case.  And it's something that will now not 



            23  be possible to devote the time that we had assumed would 



            24  be available.  



            25           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  I assume that there's 











                                                                       17

�







                                                                         









             1  not been any schedule yet that -- 



             2           (Mr. Wigmore rejoined the meeting.)



             3           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  So I assume that 



             4  there -- since the trial hasn't actually taken place, 



             5  there is no schedule yet for post-trial briefings?  



             6           I assume that's something you'll probably do at 



             7  the end of the trial or is there a sense of when that is 



             8  likely to be and when?  



             9           MR. DRAPER:  There isn't any detail about the 



            10  pre- and post-trial schedule yet, but the Special Master 



            11  in that case has indicated that he would be discussing 



            12  that with us and entering orders covering -- covering 



            13  those issues in detail here probably in the next -- we 



            14  have a -- we have a call scheduled with him on the -- I 



            15  think it's the 24th of -- yes, the 24th of April.  And I 



            16  expect that at that time we'll be informed of what is 



            17  going to be required, and he will hear inquiries and 



            18  comments by the parties at that point, and then on the 



            19  basis of that set the schedule.  



            20           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  So that's 



            21  helpful.  



            22           So, Mr. Michael, before you actually get through 



            23  these options, let me ask you whether Wyoming has a -- any 



            24  concern about extending the deadline other than the way 



            25  that it might impact other deadlines that you face?  
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             1           Obviously, from the standpoint of the judicial 



             2  system, there's the importance of moving this forward in 



             3  any case, but I'm also curious, and it wasn't clear from 



             4  the one letter that was part of the emergency motion, 



             5  whether or not your concerns about the proposed revised 



             6  calendar was really focused that -- on the fact that this 



             7  might end up squeezing you at the time of the release of 



             8  the expert reports or whether or not you also thought from 



             9  the standpoint of Wyoming that it was important to move 



            10  this forward.  



            11           MR. MICHAEL:  Your Honor, I have a number of 



            12  concerns.  And I've had a chance, after seeing Montana's 



            13  motion which came in a couple days ago, also of doing some 



            14  legal research, seeing what the law is on these and 



            15  looking at our Case Management Plan.  So I've got maybe 



            16  four or five I can tick off for you.  



            17           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  



            18           MR. MICHAEL:  I won't belabor you with the legal 



            19  system concerns that show up in all these cases on 



            20  extensions of scheduling orders under Rule 16.  It's 



            21  well-known law.  There's a case called Johnson vs. Mammoth 



            22  Recreation.  It's probably the best case, a Ninth Circuit 



            23  case.  



            24           But I looked at the scheduling orders, and my 



            25  first concern is this:  We have on Pages 5 and 6, "Montana 
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             1  shall disclose its experts no later than October 19, 



             2  2012."  Then we have two provisions following that; one 



             3  for Wyoming disclosure and one for Montana disclosures.  



             4  And this isn't about dates; this is about the standard.  



             5           If we want to get more time -- and I don't know 



             6  whether we'll need it because we're working very hard to 



             7  try to prevent that possibility with our experts and 



             8  trying to anticipate what we'll see from Montana, but if 



             9  we need to get that, we have to prove good cause shown.  



            10  And one of the concerns I have is just a general concern 



            11  about this case is that we have standards for these kinds 



            12  of motions and that we apply the law.  So that's number 



            13  one.  



            14           We expect to, if we want to get an extension 



            15  sometime for that and hope we don't have to, to have to 



            16  meet the standard of good cause shown.  And I don't think 



            17  Montana has done that with respect to what they want here.  



            18  So I'm concerned about that.  That's over -- just a 



            19  general concern.  



            20           On pure scheduling concerns, I have a number of 



            21  them on timing.  First of all, let's talk for a minute 



            22  about the renewal of our motion for summary judgment.  



            23  First of all, I don't see it as a significant -- all that 



            24  significant event from a briefing standpoint.  



            25           I think we have had our -- we had our long 
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             1  hearing in Denver last September and you made ruling on a 



             2  lot of the legal issues, and it was, you know, well 



             3  briefed and heavily briefed.  And I think all we're doing 



             4  today is giving Montana what they ask for, which is a 



             5  chance to do some discovery to see if they can find 



             6  another year besides 2004 and '06.  



             7           And I think it's very important to us to try to 



             8  get those issues resolved early as we said last August at 



             9  the scheduling conference when we talked about putting 



            10  that call issue on our docket early because of the kind of 



            11  efficiency that would add to the case when we get that 



            12  issue narrowed down.  



            13           And we have worked on that.  We had -- in our 



            14  interrogatories that we sent to Montana, we included 



            15  questions about that, and we haven't received anything new 



            16  that Montana discovered and Montana hasn't done any 



            17  discovery on that issue.  I think we need to get that and 



            18  bring that forward on the schedule that we now have.  



            19           And I would add this:  Because I don't think that 



            20  there is all that much more to argue about, other than to 



            21  maybe talk about what further facts may be brought forward 



            22  on that issue, that I don't think it's going to be that 



            23  big of a problem for Montana to staff that argument, if 



            24  necessary, even if it was somebody else.  I know that 



            25  Jennifer Anders who I've been working with very closely on 
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             1  discovery issues almost on a daily basis attended those 



             2  arguments, and she knows what the issues are.  



             3           So I would say I just don't see any reason 



             4  whatsoever on that call issue, we don't move that and keep 



             5  that up front, because it really helps eliminate this 



             6  uncertainty about do we have to look at some other year?  



             7  Do we have to go do research on what was happening in 1981 



             8  or 1997 other than 2004 and '6?  So I really think that's 



             9  important to keep that up front.  



            10           The other area -- I do have an area of concern 



            11  about a discovery stay, and that's something I don't think 



            12  you've really talked about much here, but it -- 



            13           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  I was going to address 



            14  that, but why don't you go ahead and raise it now.  



            15           MR. MICHAEL:  Okay, I'll raise.  



            16           This summer we're looking at a snowpack in the 



            17  Big Horn Mountains of about 75 percent of average right 



            18  now.  We had, as you know, nationwide and also here a 



            19  horrendously warm early spring, and we're going to have 



            20  probably an early runoff.  We're going to have a water 



            21  year where actual inspections under Rule 34 might be very 



            22  valuable to help tell how this -- this river is regulated, 



            23  especially in Montana, a state that doesn't -- in those 



            24  two rivers does very little administration we're finding 



            25  out.  And so we think that it might be important for us to 
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             1  actually see on the ground some things.  And we can't do 



             2  that in July and August, critical irrigation months, if 



             3  Montana -- if we have a stay of discovery and there's no 



             4  room to use Rule 34.  



             5           So -- and I would add this:  As I said a minute 



             6  ago, we've been working with Jennifer Anders in Montana 



             7  very closely on document production.  We get up there.  We 



             8  took four lawyers, two experts up there on a trip to 



             9  Montana.  They sent people down here to look at stuff.  



            10  We've been doing that.  And I really believe that even if 



            11  Mr. Draper and Mr. Wechsler feel they personally have to 



            12  be attending depositions to take depositions, I still 



            13  think we move the case forward if it turns out Wyoming -- 



            14  we front-load the Wyoming depositions, and surely somebody 



            15  can defend those depositions.  I don't see that as a 



            16  difficulty.  



            17           I don't -- depositions I take, and I think I can 



            18  speak for the other lawyers here, are depositions that are 



            19  very genteel and done the right way and with the right 



            20  kind of working between the attorneys.  So I just don't 



            21  see that as a problem.  So I would -- I very much oppose 



            22  any stay of discovery.  I think it's unnecessary.  And I 



            23  think we can keep this thing moving for that reason -- 



            24  those reasons.  



            25           And as far as the experts go, as I said before, I 











                                                                       23

�







                                                                         









             1  don't think Montana -- I think you've asked some 



             2  questions -- have actually come forward with a motion here 



             3  that gives any of the kind of information that would be 



             4  necessary to share the test of due diligence, which is 



             5  what have they done in this case in the last five years to 



             6  have these experts get prepared.  



             7           But one month -- I'm not going to stand here and 



             8  tell you that a one-month delay is all that big of a deal.  



             9  As I said, we're working very hard to get our experts 



            10  ready.  We hope we don't have to ask for any kind of a 



            11  good cause extension.  And -- but -- and we're trying to 



            12  predict what their experts will be designating so we can 



            13  try to do that.  



            14           But I think that kind of covers the issues that I 



            15  wanted to talk about in terms of the schedule.  So your 



            16  option number one seems to be by far the fairest and the 



            17  best.  



            18           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  Thanks.  



            19           So let me -- I want to separate out two things 



            20  for a moment.  The first is the schedule as a whole and 



            21  second of all the question of a discovery stay.  



            22           First of all, in terms of the schedule as a 



            23  whole, do any of the Amicus want to say anything with 



            24  regard to that?  Any comments?  Any thoughts?  



            25           Okay.  And then, Mr. Draper, I know it's a little 
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             1  bit different because -- difficult for you because you're 



             2  in one room and the other attorneys for Montana are in 



             3  different locations.  So let me also ask whether or not 



             4  any of your co-counsel in this case have anything that 



             5  they want to add?  



             6           Okay.  So then, Mr. Draper, again just staying on 



             7  the schedule, and we can talk, as I say, about the 



             8  discovery stay in a moment, but any response that you want 



             9  to make to -- well, to Mr. Michael's comments?  



            10           MR. DRAPER:  Yes, Your Honor.  We believe that we 



            11  have shown good cause by our motion, the affidavits, and 



            12  the discussion today.  I think Mr. Michaels -- Michael 



            13  said that there was -- we had not done any discovery.  



            14           We've been -- we've made two separate trips to 



            15  Wyoming with counsel and experts for significant parts of 



            16  weeks in each case to push discovery along, so we have not 



            17  been sitting back on that as he seemed to suggest.  



            18           In terms of adding to the efficiency of the case, 



            19  I expressed my initial preference for the first option.  



            20  But in terms of adding to the efficiency of the case, I 



            21  think you've made it clear that the decision on the motion 



            22  for partial summary judgment is going to a remedy and 



            23  whether damages can be awarded in certain years, not as to 



            24  standards for Compact Compliance.  So I don't think that 



            25  point is particularly relevant.  But the points that you 
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             1  have raised I think are.  And we do all want to 



             2  participate in an expeditious manner to take care of our 



             3  part in the Court's responsibility to hear and decide 



             4  these cases based on a full record.  



             5           As far as the statements regarding how 



             6  unnecessary it is to have any particular person involved 



             7  in discovery, it seems to me that whenever possible the 



             8  Court should allow the parties to have their normal 



             9  counsel present and not schedule things in a way that 



            10  makes it impossible for that to happen.  



            11           So those are my comments.  And as I said before, 



            12  the first option seems to be somewhat preferable from our 



            13  point of view, but I do -- I would urge that we be allowed 



            14  more time in the big scheme of things, another month or 



            15  two is not -- is not going to loom very large.  What will 



            16  be important is whether the case gets properly prepared 



            17  and tried and properly decided.  



            18           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  And then on the 



            19  discovery stay -- so the proposal right now is that 



            20  discovery be stayed from July 15th to September 15th.  As 



            21  I understand what you're requesting, it is that no 



            22  depositions would take place during that period of time, 



            23  and in addition to that, that no discovery answers due 



            24  during that period of time; is that correct?  



            25           MR. DRAPER:  Yes, Your Honor.  That discovery be 
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             1  temporarily suspended so that during that time the State 



             2  of Montana and, in particular, the experts that we have 



             3  and counsel are not required to play a major role with 



             4  respect to discovery; in other words, to have a schedule 



             5  that would require substantial involvement of counsel 



             6  during that period because some deadline is immediately 



             7  after it or at the end of it.  



             8           It was -- it was my concern really for the 



             9  immediate pretrial responsibilities that Special Master 



            10  Kayatta has indicated in forceble terms would be occurring 



            11  in the time leading up to the trial and that there will be 



            12  post-trial briefing.  So during that particular time it 



            13  seems particularly inappropriate to be requiring us to 



            14  discharge that responsibility if it's not absolutely 



            15  necessary.  



            16           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Mr. Michael, just going 



            17  back to you for a moment, and I know that this will be a 



            18  somewhat difficult question to ask, but do you have any 



            19  sense of the type of discovery that you would expect to 



            20  conduct during that period of time if you could?  



            21           MR. MICHAEL:  Oh, absolutely, Your Honor.  We're 



            22  taking a deposition next week.  We're taking -- I'm taking 



            23  four the week after in Helena and Billings.  Those are the 



            24  Compact commissioners and the higher officials in Montana 



            25  so I can talk to them about the call issue, and then we're 
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             1  going to talk about a lot of other issues involving 



             2  administration, how dams are regulated, that sort of 



             3  thing.  



             4           So we would probably take depositions of possibly 



             5  some of the ranchers, the major -- or actually the major 



             6  irrigation district which is the T & Y Irrigation 



             7  District.  We would take the deposition of the fellow that 



             8  manages Tongue River Reservoir.  We would probably take 



             9  the deposition of the several people that were asked to be 



            10  administrators by Montana court to administer the rivers 



            11  in 2004 and 2006, and we would be gathering just simple 



            12  facts:  How do they do things?  How do they operate?  What 



            13  do they recall about those years, the things that they 



            14  did?  



            15           That's the kind of things that Montana's experts, 



            16  of course, can simply read the transcripts later on.  



            17  We're not talking about taking the depositions of a bunch 



            18  of -- you know, this isn't highly technical, really.  It's 



            19  just tell us how you operate, what you do, that sort of 



            20  thing.  I think it's something that Montana could readily 



            21  defend without any difficulty and wouldn't be one that 



            22  their experts would have to attend necessarily.  



            23           So, yes, we'd be thinking about doing those 



            24  depositions in the summer when it makes sense.  And if a 



            25  combination of a deposition and also a field inspection of 
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             1  a diversion point, we would want to do that, we would go 



             2  do that.  And I'm sure Montana can then, you know -- we 



             3  can't trespass, so Montana would have to escort us on 



             4  that.  



             5           That's what I have in mind.  And that's why I 



             6  said I felt that could continue without any difficulty.  



             7           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  So let me just 



             8  say on this -- you know, again, I understand Montana's 



             9  concerns here.  I think at a minimum, and this really is a 



            10  minimum, that, you know, any -- you know, to the degree 



            11  that discovery was stayed for a period of time that there 



            12  be an exception for any type of discovery that needs to be 



            13  taken during that period of time.  So the type of field 



            14  inspection you're talking about, Mr. Michael, would 



            15  clearly fall into that category.  



            16           And, you know, at this point for me the question 



            17  is whether I stay discovery for a limited period of time 



            18  subject to, let's say, to any exceptions for things that 



            19  have to take place during that -- during that window or 



            20  permit discovery to -- well, to take place or another 



            21  possibility would be to permit discovery subject to -- 



            22  well, Montana if it believed that it cannot adequately 



            23  defend, for example, a deposition because of the 



            24  importance of having an expert there, raising the question 



            25  initially with Wyoming, and if the two of you couldn't 
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             1  agree, then asking me for basically a stay on that 



             2  specific discovery so that we can do this on a case by 



             3  case basis.  



             4           So Mr. Draper and Mr. Michael, thoughts on those 



             5  options.  I know which option each of you prefers, but -- 



             6           MR. DRAPER:  Your Honor, this is John Draper.  I 



             7  think that your suggestion there sounds like a workable 



             8  one.  I would say that the types of matters that 



             9  Mr. Michael has referred to don't occur exclusively during 



            10  this July 15th to September 15th period.  Irrigation is 



            11  going on before then.  And I think we should be able to 



            12  accommodate their requests under the conditions that they 



            13  would like to do it and not -- and not need to do it 



            14  within this period that we've requested.  



            15           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  I actually put several 



            16  options out there.  So when you said that what I set out 



            17  sounded like it would be workable, I'm not quite sure 



            18  which one you were thinking of.  



            19           MR. DRAPER:  I was thinking, Your Honor, of the 



            20  staying of discovery for a limited period.  And there I 



            21  was thinking of the period that we had requested, 



            22  July 15th to September 15th, with the caveat or exception 



            23  that discovery can go forward during that period 



            24  nevertheless if it's the only time such discovery can be 



            25  conducted.  
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             1           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  And Mr. Michael.  



             2           MR. MICHAEL:  Well, there's one other point I 



             3  wanted to raise, and I kind of got off focusing on 



             4  depositions.  And I really believe that -- I disagree with 



             5  Mr. Draper, what he said a moment ago.  



             6           I mean, this -- in a drought year, 2006, the 



             7  Tongue River didn't go into administration of Montana 



             8  till -- at least they didn't make a call on Wyoming till 



             9  July 28th of 2006.  So to say that we can find out what we 



            10  need to find out earlier, I'm not sure.  



            11           But the other issue is records and documents, 



            12  and, you know, there's been a big effort.  And I misspoke 



            13  before, and I apologize for that if I said Montana hasn't 



            14  done discovery.  I just said what they've done is 



            15  basically the document, you know, sharing that we've been 



            16  doing between each other.  But I suspect there's going to 



            17  be some document discovery, and there might be a 



            18  deposition or two of some document custodians, I forget to 



            19  mention, that would be able to tell us what Montana 



            20  documents were and how you would manipulate their data, 



            21  that sort of thing.  



            22           And so far anything we've done with documents, at 



            23  least when we've been up to Montana, we worked with 



            24  Jennifer Anders, and they've been very gracious, and I 



            25  hope we've been as equally gracious down here, and I just 
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             1  don't see why that wouldn't continue.  I think it's mostly 



             2  going to be a little here, a little there, a specific 



             3  document here or a specific thing that somebody 



             4  discovered, and I just don't see the need why that 



             5  couldn't be done and continue during that interim.  It's 



             6  really the way we've been working already with Montana on 



             7  documents.  And we've been doing it very much this week on 



             8  sharing documents.  



             9           So I forgot to mention that.  I did want to also 



            10  put that on the table, Your Honor.  



            11           As far as the -- again, I guess if there was a 



            12  deposition that we noticed and Montana had said, "Look, 



            13  this is one that we really think we have to have our 



            14  experts there," and can convince you of that, then so be 



            15  it, then we'd be barred from taking the deposition.  I 



            16  think we ought to have a chance to go forward and have it 



            17  be case by case if there's a problem, would be my 



            18  preference, in terms of compromising a little here.  



            19           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Right.  



            20           And so my general approach on these issues, from 



            21  the period that I was a litigator, is that, you know, to 



            22  believe that counsel can generally work these things out, 



            23  particularly as in this case where it appears to me 



            24  there's a very good working relationship between the 



            25  counsel on both sides.  
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             1           And so that's why I'm wondering whether or not 



             2  one possible approach is to basically have a rule that 



             3  during the -- during the period of the trial, as well as, 



             4  you know, I think it's also fair to also give Mr. Draper 



             5  and his -- and his fellow attorneys an opportunity to 



             6  prepare for that trial, but during that period of time 



             7  that Wyoming would avoid any discovery that if it believes 



             8  it doesn't need to hold during that period of time or that 



             9  would probably need the presence of either Mr. Draper, 



            10  Mr. Wechsler, or their experts who are working on the 



            11  other case, so basically asking Wyoming to accommodate 



            12  Mr. Draper and Mr. Wechsler and their experts during that 



            13  period.  And also reflecting that Mr. Draper and 



            14  Mr. Wechsler would be free to say if a particular request 



            15  was troublesome.  



            16           And if you all cannot work it out on your own, 



            17  then I would be more than happy on a case by case basis to 



            18  say that, no, I think that really you need to let 



            19  Mr. Draper and Mr. Wechsler handle their other case and we 



            20  put that off until later.  



            21           But I guess my question is:  Is there any reason 



            22  why the two of you believe you can't work this out 



            23  together versus just putting an absolute stay on 



            24  discovery?  



            25           MR. DRAPER:  Well, Your Honor, this is John 
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             1  Draper.  I think it is true that we have established a 



             2  very good working relationship among counsel.  What -- 



             3  what any order you put into place would do is simply set 



             4  the general assumptions about -- about how things should 



             5  proceed during a certain period.  And certainly if there's 



             6  something during that period that would otherwise be 



             7  appropriate and can be accommodated, we'd certainly be 



             8  open to that.  But I think it would be helpful if you were 



             9  able to set the stage and at least indicate that discovery 



            10  that doesn't need to take place during that July 15th to 



            11  September 15th period be avoided if at all possible and 



            12  that counsel -- counsel be encouraged to work out any 



            13  issues from either side.  I think that kind of approach is 



            14  likely to be workable given our last -- our historical 



            15  good working relationship.  



            16           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Mr. Michael.  



            17           MR. MICHAEL:  Well, I would say this:  If we're 



            18  going to knock out a couple months of most of discovery or 



            19  deposition discovery that we just have to be very aware; 



            20  we have got a discovery -- last day for depositions is 



            21  currently scheduled for January 25th.  And the witness 



            22  lists are very long from the initial disclosures.  So 



            23  we're talking about the potential here of having multiple 



            24  depositions going on at the same times later in the fall.  



            25  So I would just keep that in mind.  I think we've got the 
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             1  manpower here to handle it and may have to do that.  So I 



             2  think everybody needs to be aware of that.  



             3           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  So let me tell 



             4  you where I think I am at the moment, which is that -- my 



             5  inclination is to go forward with the schedule for 



             6  Wyoming's renewed motion for partial summary judgment, 



             7  although I do not have any calendar in front of me right 



             8  now.  



             9           What I would propose, and I realize that this is 



            10  asking something of you, Mr. Michael, but what I would 



            11  propose is probably I will move the deadline for Wyoming's 



            12  response up a couple of days.  You know, as you point out, 



            13  I would particularly expect when you get to the response 



            14  stage that it's not going to be particularly time 



            15  consuming.  To the degree that there is any aspect of this 



            16  motion which is time consuming will probably be pulling 



            17  the facts together, and trying to, therefore, hold the -- 



            18  a hearing on that renewed motion on Friday, July 27th or 



            19  potentially Thursday July 26th.  That way we can complete 



            20  all of that and get that out of the way before the trial 



            21  commences in Kansas vs. Nebraska.  



            22           As I said, I do expect to -- well, to delay when 



            23  expert reports are due, but not by four months.  And so my 



            24  best expectation is probably something in the two month 



            25  vicinity because at least based on the papers in front of 
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             1  me, it's hard for me to see good cause for more than about 



             2  a two-month extension in those deadlines, but I do think 



             3  that there is cause shown to delay those dates to some 



             4  degree to reflect the fact that the experts that 



             5  Mr. Draper expects to use on behalf of Montana are also 



             6  involved in the Kansas vs. Nebraska case.  



             7           And as I said, my goal would be to extend all of 



             8  the various deadlines that come after the renewed motion 



             9  for partial summary judgment.  So that would include the 



            10  disclosure of the expert report and the last day for 



            11  propounding written discovery and the last date for 



            12  deposition and the final day for motions.  All of those 



            13  would also be moved back to reflect that delay with a goal 



            14  of having the final day for motions be at the beginning of 



            15  May rather than the June 25th date.  So my hope would be 



            16  is that ultimately we would maybe lose a month and a half 



            17  here in moving the trial forward.  



            18           On the discovery stay, my inclination is, as I 



            19  mentioned, to issue an order requiring the parties to 



            20  confer and to decide what is -- what is appropriate.  



            21           And in connection with that, I think it is 



            22  important that we reflect the fact that Mr. Draper and 



            23  Mr. Wechsler will be in the trial.  So that suggests that 



            24  anything that does not need to take place during the -- 



            25  during the window of the trial and, say, two weeks before 
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             1  that doesn't need to take place during that period of time 



             2  and is not going to make discovery more difficult for 



             3  Wyoming or really both parties by requiring doubling up 



             4  afterwards, to the degree that things can be delayed, then 



             5  I would ask that Wyoming grant that courtesy to Montana.  



             6           But I would also expect that as part of that 



             7  conferral, that number one, if there are specific 



             8  discovery matters that Wyoming feels is necessary during 



             9  that period, that we will move forward on those.  



            10  Similarly, if there is something that is in the -- that is 



            11  already in the works; in other words, if there's, for 



            12  example, a written discovery matter where maybe it's to 



            13  supplement interrogatories and the like and it is 



            14  relatively minor, you know, my hope is that things just 



            15  don't shut down as of two weeks before the trial, but that 



            16  those matters can continue forward.  



            17           And furthermore, Mr. Michael, if there are 



            18  particular depositions that you would like to -- well, be 



            19  able to schedule for that period of time and that you do 



            20  not believe that Mr. Draper and Mr. Wechsler may be there 



            21  because Ms. Anders, for example, could handle the defense 



            22  of the deposition, then I would ask that the parties sit 



            23  down and basically go through those witnesses and see 



            24  whether or not an agreement can be made that some 



            25  depositions can go forward with Ms. Anders as defending 
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             1  them.  And that if there is any disagreement there, that 



             2  it can be brought back to me on an emergency basis.  I'm 



             3  willing to sit down at any point to talk about these, and 



             4  we can actually resolve those.  



             5           My expectation is that we probably won't need 



             6  that because I think you are all very considerate to each 



             7  other and that you'll be able to work it out, but I'm more 



             8  than happy to resolve things on a case by case basis.  



             9           So that's my current thinking.  And there are a 



            10  couple of details there, including the exact amount of 



            11  time that I would delay the expert reports that I'm not 



            12  going to decide during this telephone call because I want 



            13  to sit down with the calendar and actually look at the 



            14  calendar and see how this can be best addressed.  



            15           And also I will embody in any order language to 



            16  the effect that I just said with respect to the discovery 



            17  stay.  So I realize I'll need to put that together.  And 



            18  tomorrow is actually -- we have a retreat of the Woods 



            19  Institute that both I and Susan Carter will be at, so I 



            20  probably won't have an opportunity to circulate anything 



            21  until Monday.  



            22           And, Mr. Draper, I know I did not give you a 



            23  chance to consult with your fellow counsel about my two 



            24  options.  And so you're certainly free tomorrow to submit 



            25  a letter if you want to weigh in on option two versus 
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             1  option one because, as I said, unless I'm convinced 



             2  otherwise, I am planning on moving forward with option 



             3  one.  



             4           And furthermore, if there's any other information 



             5  that you want to give me with respect to the length of 



             6  period of time necessary for a delay in the disclosure of 



             7  the expert reports other than what has -- you've already 



             8  submitted, you're also free to do that in a letter 



             9  tomorrow.  



            10           And, Mr. Michael, I'll give you the same 



            11  consideration if there's anything more that occurs to you 



            12  after this phone conference, you're more than welcome 



            13  to -- well, submit that in a letter tomorrow because, as I 



            14  said, I won't finalize this until probably -- I'll work on 



            15  this on Sunday.  



            16           So let me ask, then, both Mr. Michael and 



            17  Mr. Draper your thoughts on what I just said.  I realize 



            18  that in neither case it is exactly what you want.  



            19           MR. DRAPER:  Your Honor, this is John Draper.  I 



            20  don't have anything further to say.  I appreciate your 



            21  consideration of our predicament.  I'm sorry that it has 



            22  arisen, but I appreciate the consideration of Wyoming and 



            23  the other parties as well as yourself in trying to address 



            24  that in a fair way.  



            25           MR. MICHAEL:  Your Honor, this is Peter Michael.  
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             1  I don't have anything to add.  Thank you.  



             2           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  Do any of the 



             3  other parties have anything they want to add or, again, I 



             4  realize that other counsel from Montana are on the line 



             5  and can't pass notes to Mr. Draper, so if you do have 



             6  anything you want to add, feel free to add anything, too?  



             7           Okay.  Then I think if there's no other 



             8  conversation -- anything else that we need to raise during 



             9  this telephone conference?  



            10           MR. DRAPER:  Nothing from Montana, Your Honor.  



            11           MR. MICHAEL:  No, Your Honor.  



            12           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Okay.  Great.  So I 



            13  think this has been a really very productive phone 



            14  conference.  And again, I appreciate the way in which the 



            15  parties are trying to work together to bring this to a 



            16  conclusion.  



            17           And if you do have anything more that you would 



            18  like to submit on these matters, any other thoughts that 



            19  come to you, feel free to submit a letter tomorrow.  



            20           And let me just ask, if you are going to do that, 



            21  if you could send it not only to Susan Carter as you 



            22  normally would, but if you could also copy me by e-mail.  



            23  And my e-mail is buzzt@stanford.edu.  And I say that only 



            24  because she is going to be in the retreat, also, and she 



            25  probably won't have an opportunity to check and then 
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             1  forward it to me, and that way I know I will have anything 



             2  that you submitted.  



             3           Okay.  So, again, thank you very much.  Hope you 



             4  have productive remainders of the day, what is left of it.  



             5  And as I said, I will submit an order revising the Case 



             6  Management Plan dates along the lines that I just 



             7  discussed and taking into consideration anything more that 



             8  you add tomorrow.  I will do that on Monday.  



             9           MR. DRAPER:  Thank you very much, Your Honor.  



            10           SPECIAL MASTER THOMPSON:  Thank you, Mr. Draper, 



            11  Mr. Michael.  Thank you everyone on the line.  



            12           MR. MICHAEL:  Thank you, Your Honor.  



            13                            - - -



            14           (End of proceedings at 3:38 p.m.)



            15                            - - -



            16  



            17  



            18  



            19  



            20  



            21  



            22  



            23  



            24  



            25  













                                                                       41

�







                                                                         









             1               STATE OF CALIFORNIA           )



             2                                     )    ss

                     COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO           )

             3       



             4          I, ANTONIA SUEOKA, Certified Shorthand Reporter 



             5  No. 9007, State of California, do hereby certify: 



             6          That said proceedings were taken at the time and 



             7  place therein named and were reported by me in shorthand 



             8  and transcribed by means of computer-aided transcription, 



             9  and that the foregoing pages are a full, complete, and 



            10  true record of said proceedings.



            11          And I further certify that I am a disinterested 



            12  person and am in no way interested in the outcome of said 



            13  action, or connected with or related to any of the parties 



            14  in said action, or to their respective counsel.



            15          The dismantling, unsealing, or unbinding of the 



            16  original transcript will render the reporter's certificate 



            17  null and void.



            18          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 



            19  this 23rd day of April, 2012.  



            20  



            21            



            22            



            23                        



            24                ________________________________________



            25                 Antonia Sueoka, RPR, CSR NO. 9007 











                                                                       42



